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Bill Gates

From:
To:
Subjoct;
Oate:

Bill Gate~
Brian FlulIliflg
FW: Shell Extensions
Tuesday, Nuvember 08. 1994 G:41 AM
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~asiclv we gave up because of m:Hvel and paul will check into the add on pack..

From: Paul Maritz
To: Bill Gates
Subject: RE: Shell Extensions
Date: Mon!.iay, November 07, 199'1 5:56PM

I met on Friday with DRG and Joeb to review followino:

1. In M7, the Chicano Shell has been Changed to force apps that use the iShp.IIFolder interfaces TO open imo
a separate window•. ie. appear to be separate apps.

2. There were 4 groups llsing these interfaces (Capone, Marvel, Stac. Symantecl. Capone. Stae, Symantec
have found way:> tu IlUt use them. However, the MARVEL guys have said tho1 there is no way they can
move off the current interlaces and still have chance of shipping with Win'95.

3. Based on this stance by MARVEL. we will not disable the interfaces. but will not document the
iShellFoldcr in regular documentation, bur we will have them documented in a resource kit so that if
someone really. real'v does want to uS/J them thev can. I feaf that if Marvel is using them, we have to say
that in theory SUllIlwne else could have done likewise. Howover we will tell ISVs th<1t there is no guarantee
that these API's will not get broken if future and we do 110t recommend their use as a result. If someone
does usc them, because the intcrf;;Jces have been doctored to force app to open into a separate window,
the legacy case can bo handled relatively straightforward way by simply stnrting a copy of currern explorer
and then :>larting the app ill same process.

4. I am not up to speed on details of O'Hare' will find out.

From: Bill Gates
To: Paul Maritz
Subject: PN: Shell Extensions
lJate: TueSday, November OR. 1994 5:32AM

I am a little confused by what is ooinO on in this whalo area.
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From bradstr Sat Nov 12 12:09:43"1994
X-MSMail-Message-ID: 5013706C
X-MSMail-Parent-message-ID: DDFFA38A
X-MSMail-Conversation-ID: D521F5CB
From: Brad Struss <bradstr@microsoft.com>
To: billg
Date: Sat, 12 Nov 94 12:01:19 PST
Subject: CEO Dinner Talking points
Cc: doughe, jonl, rogerh

Here are suggested talking points we've pulled together for your talk
at Sunday nights CEO dinner.

Attendees fall into 3 categories: top productivity isvs targeting win9S
(firstwave), key education title vendors targeting win9S, and key
hardware vendors creating PnP hardware. Confirmed attendees are at
very bottom of this mail.

Main Objective

The objective of this talk is to keep these ISVs/IHVs invigorated to
get their products to market as committed (w/in 90 days of ship) and to
thank them for their support as early adopters. Hit the importance of
making the 60-90-day window to get products to ship (or sooner for
hardware vendors). Microsoft will be there in that timeframe. Tell
ISVs that we're still on track for Ql RTM and are still confident we
will have a release in first half on 95, but of course will not ship it
until ready. Emphasize the size of the launch of Windows 95 and how
that will create this huge wave for them, and that our co-marketing is
geared on the apps that do make that timeframe. Marketing
opportunities include electronic catalog on CD version and "bus" ad for
logo/product advertising---ie MS ad followed by 3rd party ads for their
win95 products. Win9S represents great opportunity for joint success
as users move forward.

Additional details/points:

1. Thank you to early Windows 95 partners/adopters for strong
commitment to Windows 95.
- There will be 125+" ihvs/oems/isvs showing produts being designed for
windows 95 on the show floor.
- 80 PnP hardware devices shipping today. Just completed PnP press
tour - editors were very impressed & surprised with how well it worked
and how many devices there already were.
- The WPP in early 95 will be the "1. Olt release to 400k people. This
is the time to be in beta. Final ship will be the II. 1 11 release.

2. Highlight a couple ISVs in booth:
- Visio showing localized Win95-J 32-bit version in 3rd party booth
(will have Win95-J version running back of room). Emphasize worldwide
aspect of launch. They are also showing a NT/PPC version on show floor.
- Elastic Reality - 32-bit (Win32s) product ported over from SGI.
Morphing/special effects packaged used for movies/commercials. Has
been used for Chrysler commercials. Also showing a NTjPPC version on showfloor
- MS, Lotus, and WP all showing win95 products on the show floor, plus
many other top isvs/oems/ihvs (see list below)

. 3. Update on Win9S: Just released to M7 to 48000 beta testers, most
stable release yet. Many interesting new features:
- Focusing on making transition very easy for existing users with a
guided tour to help both new users and Windows 3.1 users learn the
Windows 95 user interface and an integrated Windows 3.1 help system to
aid Windows 3.1 users in operating in Windows 95 HIGHLY
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- Autoplay (we will have a machine in room with 32-bit WinDoom and
32-bit Freddie Fish both using Autoplay)
- Proactively address/position Marvel being in the box. AOL,
Cornpuserve, and Prodigy will have representatives in the audience. All
three are moving forward with 32-bit/ole enabled clients. AOL is
showing in 3rd party" section of the MS booth.

4. Win NT PPC (will have PPC 604 machine with pre-release version of
Word & Excel in back of room).
- Comment on MS App planned·availability.
- Comment Win NT support for new hardware platform moto-ibm-apple announced.
- The demo machine in the room is an IBM PPC 604 system. Great chance
to show ISVs that IBM *is* behind NT. IBM did the port, IBM's
delivering the hardware. FYI: Roy Clauson (IBM Kirkland) will be in
the audience.
- OVer 30 native NT/PPC apps demoing at Fall Comdex
- Around 12 PPC OEMs demoing new hardware running NT/PP
- NT/PPC is up and running on a FirePower (OEM) dual-604 SMP machine

5. Vision
- talk about what comes post win95
- talk about importance of BackOffice. Lots of opportunities to hook
client software. Hosting Server PDC in January. Server PDC is focused
on moving any remaining NLMs and getting all the server apps on our platform.

6. Q&A

Issues to be prepared to address:
1. The namespace extensions were initia111y pulled from Win95 and ISVs
were informed of this change. In general they've been ok with this.
Just recently, because Marvel could not completely stop using them and
still ship on time, the decision was made to provide documentation for
these as "dead" api. "Dead" means not supported after Win95 vi and not
part of sdk (available by request). The semantics of these APIs has
also changed slightly. Apps that use these will corne up in a new
explorer window and the left hand pane will only represent the
heirarchy that the applications presents (previous semantics allowed
apps to show their heirarchy along with filesysterns and run in the same
window) .

ISVs have not been informed that a "dead ll api doc will become available
yet. If the question comes up, we should say:
- it looks like we'll provide some documentation for these in the next
couple weeks, but that ISVs are strongly discouraged from using them
since they will break in future wing5 releases & on all NT releases.
- if ISVs want to duplicate the look & feel of the explorer, they
should look at the "Chicoapp" sample on MSDN, not these interfaces

2. MS Exposition on Win95 CD. Although a eRN article came out that
hinted that Exposition (and l6-bit office) would be on the Win9S CD &
wpp CD, ISVs & the infoworld/pcweek press have not picked up on this
yet. Doubtful that this will corne up, but we should be prepared to
answer just in case.

Top 3rd party ISVs showing
America Online
ARCADA Software
AT & T Multimedia Software
Attachmate Corporation
Avid Technology
Byte by Byte
CHEYENNE SOFTWARE, INC.
Colorado Memory Systems
Comshare

in MS Booth

Solutions

HIGHLY
CONFIDENTIAL
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Corel Corp
DCA
DELRINA CORPORATION
EASTMAN KODAK
Elastic Reality
Hillgrave Inc.
Humongous Entertainment
IMRS
Intergraph
Macromedia
MEDIAMATICS INC.
Micorosft Office '95
Micro Focus
Micrografx, Inc.
ORACLE CORPORATION
Powersoft Corporation
SAS Institute Inc.
Shapeware Corp
Shiva Corp
Softkey
Software Publishing Corporation
Stac Electronics
SYMANTEC

Top OEMs/IHVs showing in MS 3rd Party Booth
3eorn
ADAPTEC
ADVANCED MICRO DEVICES
AT&T Global Information Solutions
Cirrus Logic, Inc.
Creative Labs, Inc.
Crystal Semiconductor
Dell Computer Corporation
FUTURE DOMAIN CORPORATION
GATEWAY 2000
HEWLETT-PACKARD
IBM
Intel
Madge Networks
Maxtor Corporation
NEC Technologies
New Media Corporation
Oak Technology
Philips Consumer Electronics
S3 Incorporated
Sierra Semiconductor
Texas Instruments
Toshiba America Information Systems, Inc.
Vadern
Xircorn Inc.

Latest list of confirmed attendees:
Sundi Sundaresh Adaptec
Jerry Barber Adobe Systems
John Nicol & Eric Zocher Adobe Systems
John Borgoine Advanced Micro Devices
Peter Shaw AGE Logic, Inc.
Steve Case America OnLine Inc.
Tim Barwick & Mike Jaffe America OnLine Inc.
Barry Horn Attachmate Corp.
Paul Larsen Attachmate Corp.
Tim Williams Attachmate Corp.
Robert Wenig Autodesk, Inc.
Kenneth Gardner Borland International

Michael Maia Cirrus Logic

MSC 00696983
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Steve pollack Claris Corp.
Larry Slotnick Claris Corp.
Bob O'Brien Computer Associates International, Inc.
Eid Eid Corel Systems
WH Sim Creative Labs
John Sosoka Davidson & Associates
Jan Davidson Davidson and Associates
Todd Mavis DCA (Digital Communications Associates, Inc.)
Jim Linder DCA (Digital Communications Associates, Inc.)
Rick Szatkowski DCA (Digital Communications Associates, Inc.)
Mark Skapinker Delrina Technology Corporation
Marc Carom Delrina Technology Corporation
John Lowry Discis KnOWledge Research
Donna Stanger and Scott Clough Edmark
Jack Allweiss Future Domain
Doug Burgum Great Plains Software
Dennis Hayes Hayes Microcomputer products, Inc.
Paul Curlander Lexmark International, Inc.
Alex Morrow Lotus Development Corporation
Jim Manzi Lotus Development Corporation

Babara Nelson Maxtor Corporation
Grant Wickes Micrografx, Inc.
Paul Grayson Pam Sculz Herman DeLatte Micrografx, Inc.
Edward M. Dua Morgan Interactive
Philip Lui Music Pen
Yee-Ping Wu Music Pen
Steve Muench Oracle Corp.
Joe Duncan Oracle Corp.
Paul Swigert Prodigy
Jim Beall Prodigy
Dr. James Goodnight SAS Institute, Inc.
Mark Cates SAS Institute, Inc.
Jeromy Jaech Shapeware
Peter Mullen Shapeware
Ken Williams Sierra On-Line
Alexander Hoag Softkey International
Kevin O'Leary Softkey International
Bill Breck SPC Corporation
Jack Noonan SPSS Inc.
Gary Claw Stac Electronics
Tom Dilatush Stac Electronics
Enrique Salem Symantec Corp.
Gordon Eubanks Symantec Corp.
Jack Tseng Tseng Labs
Adrian Rietveld WordPerfect Corporation
Dave Moon WordPerfect Corporation
Roy Clauson IBM - NT/PPC porting center
George Grayson

HIGHLY
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Patti Solomon

From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Doug Henrich
Bill Gates
FW: 12/15/94 First Wave Status Report & Issues
Friday, December 16, 1994 3:56PM

From: Brad Struss
To: Bob Muglia; Brad Chase; Brad Silverberg; Cameron Ferron;; Cameron Myhrvold; David Williams (POSOl:­
David Cole; Dennis Adler; Doug Henrich; Developer Relations Staff; George Moore; Janine A Harrison; Jim
Allchin; Mike Maples; Paul Maritz; Roger Heinen; Rogers Weed; Teri Schiele
Cc: Christopher Lye; Dan Fay; Darby Williams; Dave Berry; Deborah Epstein-Celis; Denise Shephard; Dhiren
Fonseca; Jerry Drain; James Plamondon; James Kramer (DRG); Marshall Goldberg; Mark Brown; Peter
Plamondon; Sara Williams; Scott Henson; Shawn Morrissey; Stan Murawski; Tammy Steele; Tim McCaffrey
Subject: 12/15/94 First Wave Status Report & Issues
Date: Thursday, December 15, 1994 1:51 PM

> > Thanks to those on the cc: line for all their efforts with the First Wave ISVs
• MICROSOFT CONFIDENTIAL: For Systems Division and Sr. Management Only·

Issues

Ship date change is the only current issue. We plan to proactively call the FirstWave ISVs next week to
discuss the new dates with them. The main goal will be prevent ISVs from delaying their 32-bit products
in favor of a 16-bit release in H1. We expect ISV reaction to be mixed. ISVs who are a little behind such
as WP will welcome the extra time while those hoping for initial product revenue in 02 such as Symantec
& Corel will be more concerned.

ISV Status

:i
"!

Selected Top ISV/App Status:
• Adobe (Pagemakerl . '
We've seen an internal demo that was very stable and fast. The biggest issue right now is if we can
exploit the Pagemaker group's efforts due to corporate policy which denies them to announce/demo
product too far in advance of it shipping. This may change under the Adobe umbrella.

Thunking (to their 3rd party add-ins) still an issue - lots of work to be done still. Scotthe met with HP
about their 32-bit TWAIN support and they too are facing thunking issues with trying to integrate with
16-bit TWAIN sources. This problem affects MS (especially Publisher) as well.

• Borland (Paradox)
Had good meeting with VP Richard Gorman and his Development Director in November. Richard plans to
be very aggressive in supporting the full "Win95 Logo" requirements in a Win95 release soon after
Windows 95 ships. They are currently supporting OLE2 in their recent 16-bit release, so the tough stuff is
done. There appears to be little risk to reach Richard's goal.

4 Lotus
Although Lotus recently announced that they would also do 16-bit updates of their products (PC Week
12/5), they may actually be re-evaluating Win32s based upon recent questions. Their 32-bit work seems
to be moving along well. Lotus demo'd 32-bit versions of 1-2-3, AmiPro and Freelance in one of their'
Comdex booth theaters. The products showed off Win95 common dialogs, .context menus, tab dialogs,
and ole in-place editing. They have also started localization work and usability testing. Purchased 800 wpp
kits for their beta sites. 32-bit Freelance goes into beta this month.

-.....-
• Powersoft _
Plans to release version 4.0 in the next week or two for both Windows 3.1 (16-bitl and Windows NT.·. .
(32bit). This release will support the same level of OLE support as VB3 (DnD, automation, containei';~eic_). ~_
They surmise that we will ship in JunelJuly and this works perfectly for their Windows 95 planning since '-_.~ _

they have a Mac version due in 01 and a Unix version due in 02. They Mac work is currently oeing done - •.
with Altura. They do not like the Altura solution and are investigating VC + + for the _Mac ~--- __ _. ~. - .

..~~-··i~··~· . :...--
MSC 00720353
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On OLE, they are frus-trated that every implementation seems to be a little different. They would like to get
a beta version of Word & Excel for Windows 95 to look at their OLE implementation

+ Symantec (utilitiesl
Undocumenting the shell integration API was a blow to them. They've looked at creating a stand alone
application, but have not yet committing to do one (they Initially did, but they've balked since then).
We've heard different things trom different people in their group, but have yet to get the official word on if
they plan to use the undoc'd API or not. Either way, they are committed to shipping as closely to ' .
Windows 95 RTM as they can. They showed with us at Comdex: Norton Utilties, Norton AntiVirus, and
pc-Anywhere. PC-Anywhere is not a full Win95 app just yet, they still use a lot of 16-bit code. It seemed
to run well on Win95 though.

+ Wordperfect
W? demonstrated their Windows 95 product in a corner of their booth at Comdex. They also let us use a
copy of it for theater demos, although we only used it one of the days. The moving out of Windows 95
dates is good news to them since their most recent expected ship date for W? for Win95 was September.
They've had a number of questions regarding multithreading and OLE. The planned OLE changes for M8
will help them in this regard. They continue to be very supportive in the press regarding Windows 95 and
the logo. .

Looking at the rough categories from this months report, there has been very little change:

Highly Likely to Ship:
Likely to Ship:
Risky but Possible or Neutral:
Unlikely or Worse:
Dropped

FirstWave ISV Status report:

18 (was 18l
18 (was 171

6 (was 71
1 (was 11

1 (Symantec Timeline couldn't come close to meeting dates)

< <File Attachment: DECEMBER.DOC> >

..•.- ":.
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PerfectFit 95:
Open File Dialog -- Function and Issues
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July 11,1995

This main purpose of this document is to provide a functional description of the Open Dialog for Storm. It lists function and behavior,
and most impOliant, a consensus of Open Dialog functionality. This document was necessary to alleviate difierences of opinion of how
this dialog would be implemented. Coding will occur from the infOllIlation provided by this document (this document supersedes the
User Requirements section ofthe Design Doucment). The format is a rough outline based on the current user interface design (the
tabbed version). Contact Joe Martel 2-7056 if you have any questions concerns. Eventually this document will be placed in the
FileSystem Spec document of Steve Giles.

History (recent at the top)
(tent. July 13, 1995. Updated doc with Resolution meeting items. final Doc)
-- July II, 1995. Resolution meeting
-- July 10, 1995. Sent out last pass COlmnents.
-- July 03, 1995. Sent out 2nd pass consolidation, Scheduled Resolution meeting.
-- June 30, 1995. Compile 2nd pass responses
-- June 28, 1995. Sent out I st pass consolidation
-- June 26, 1995. Compiled 1st pass responses from Lorrie, Bruce T, Joe, Grant, Heidi, Steve Giles.
-- .hme 15, 1995. Merged this with Jack's ftmctional document (Sans font) he delivered yesterday
-- June 14, 1995. Created this document to list issues and function from which to code.
-- June 12, 1995. Trying to understand the functionality of the dialog. In talking to Steve Giles, Jack, and Bruce difierent answers, some
brainstOllIl attempts and general lack of overall functional design occurs. Steve and Bruce do not have the time to provide a functional
spec. We need a functional description (document not verbal) to code II-om. Jack is willing to provide a skeleton for a high level
functional spec.
-- June 09, 1995. Tom C. Instructed all not to pursue the alternative design. This has already been decided and we will not pursue
anything other than the current design.
-- Junc 02, 1995. Jack Young called a mccting dcscrihing a proposal for thc dialog. Gary Gihh, Stcvc Giles, Brucc Ticjcn, ... attcndcd.
The meeting participants seemed interested in it and the group proceeded to evaluate and tweak its design. Druce brought up the
current proposal (tabbed dialog). Jack is going to pursue this through usability. It was also recommended that we have a base set of
scenarios (derived fi-om usability and CD teams) fi-om which we could judge the various proposals and the iterative adjustments to the
desib'll·

Scenarios
I. Open a file with a name I know. File:Open. [Dialog brought up.] Type the name in, hit retum. [The document should be opened into
thc app from which thc DIg was launchcd. Tfthc dialog is not associatcd with an app thc app associatcd with thc spccificd ohjcct would
be launched (DAD context)]
l.a. [If the document wasn't found, a message box indicates the problem as is currently done. No exit from Dlg.J Maintain current
functionality (ie flags)

2. Open a file with a name I "think" I know. As in 1, but I.a. is exercised because I didn't know the right name. Well I know that the
document is a WordPerfect document and I know part of the name or some content. I go to Find by Name or Content and want to limit
the search to *'wpd. (We saw a large number of users who know the type of document because they "live" in their apps, and want to
limit finding hy that typc of documcnt).

3. Open a file with a name I know, but I don't know where it is.

4. Open a file with content I know, but unknown name.

Novell Confidential
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Dialog Box
1. Sizing functions

a. Minimizable, Maximizable
b. Sizable

1. There is a set minimum size (not user modifiable) for the Dig and the tabs fit within this.
ii. The List (the main element of the dialog), grows or shrinks with the Dig size.

(1) Scroll bars are present as needed.
(2) The scroll bars do not get truncated.

111. Other elements, toolbar/status bar, may be truncated by the software, (not the user). Each
tab determines its minimum useful size. When it reaches that size, it no longer
continues to re-size its controls smaller, thus causing them to be truncated or not
visible.

IV. Sizing control at bottom corner.
2. Modal nature

a. If the Dig is invol<ed from an app, it The Dig is closed after the user hits Open or Cancel button. This is true of apps
like WP, QP, ... as well as for other apps like DAD. The Dig will not live after Open/Cancel. If the Open Dig is
invol<ed stand alone (ie not from a standard App; WP, QP, PR, ... ) it should change to mal<e Launohing the
assooiated app the default. (This is mentioned elsewhere) Jaol<: What is the differenoe betvveen a and b? Or
'Nhy are they the opposite of eaoh other?

b. The DIg may be launched by the app, and the DIg is not closed until the users hits Close or
Cancel. Tfthe user hits the Open button, the DIg will communicate (callback) to the app
the selected objects. This will handle QF's need to have an ever present Find DIg like
Explorer.

c. The calling app would close the Open DIg when if the calling app closes down while the DIg is
up.

3. Tabbed
a. There will be three tabs on the dialog.

i. Open
11. Find by Name
111. Find by Content

b. Stickiness of the Open Dialog tabs should be an App decided issue. When the Open Dialog is 'invoked' the App
must set which tab should be the default tab. If the App chooses not to specify a preference, by default they
get the Open tab.

1. The App will be able to Query the Open DIg to find the last tab the user was using.
11. The state for each tab is remembered (sticky) during the DIg session so If the user moves

between tabs the state of the tab does not change unless the user changes it and the
controls on that tab are preserved for that DIg instantiation. (The App may choose to
preserve these states for the life of the App, but it's the App's responsibility).

c. The tabs are independent of each other.
i. The controls (Look In... ) would not transfer from tab to tab.
11. The Preview setting would transfer from tab to tab since it set in the menu and should

affect all children (tabs).
iii. The tabs are independent. This means one tab's state does not affect the other and has no

knowledge of another tab. (This means if the user changes the "Look In" field in one tab
and then goes to another tab, the user's setting would not be reflected) Some menu items
affect how certain controls appear (like preview window) because those are global to the
DIg settings. Question Jack: Is it wise to make it so the Look In doesn't reflect the changes from tab to
tab? Should the Look In control be off the tabs so it only needs to be changed once? What is the users
intent? How can we best address it? (Joe: If we decide to change Look In to be global we should pull this
control off the tab and make to a child of the Dig not the tab.)

d. Proposed: There is no mechanism to add additional tabs by third parties. However, products
like SoftSolutions will be able to be visible via ODMA functionality. Jack: Can

Novell Confidential 2
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third parties add additional tabs?
4. Menu

a. File (changes depending upon what object is selected)
Open, New, Create Shortcut, Delete, Rename, Properties, Close. Sharing, Send To,

Print, and Open With, Printing of the Lists will be supported depending on the item selected and its
attributes.

b. Edit
Undo, Cut, Copy, Paste, Paste Special, Select All, Invert Selection ,Paste Shortcut

(depending on the item selected and container attributes.)

c. View
Toolbar, Status Bar, Large Icons, Small Icons, List, Details, Explorer View, Arrange

Icons, Line Up Icons, Refresh, Options. (Priority 2: Provide Sort Order menu item to
show how it is sorting [i.e. alphabetical, descending). Changing the sort order is
already supported). Jacl<: Arrange Icons in Win95 actually does a type of sort. Is that '",hat you're
saying is a priority 22

d. Preview
1. No Preview, Formatted, Contents, Information/Properties, Preview on Demand

e. QuickList
1. Add to QuickList, Edit/ModitY QuickList, QuickList Items, Print QuickList

f Latest
Latest includes both files and locations (directories) Default to 10 entries each. User (application) can

override the default number of files and default number of locations. Each is separately changeable.

g. Help
1. Help Topic, About OpenPerfect.
ii. Deena Tripp, x27442 Bldg E. will write the help file.
iii. Help file includes help on the QF component when it is available.
iv. The common error message for the Open dialogs such as "no viewer found/avail" documented in the help

section for OPEN PERFECT and then give the user options on how to resolve the error (installing the
viewers or ignore the message).

5. Status Bar
a. Located at the bottom of the dialog upon demand from the View menu. (Global, so affects all

tabs)
b. Shows Counts of items, sizes, dates, descriptive name, etc. (maintain currently functionality).
c Sort Order will be shown on Status bar

6. From a secondary mouse click support same as Explorer (ie: format, copydisk, etc. )
7. Sticky

a. The dialog does not remember what its state is in between invocations. It is up to the App to
remember and set state if it desires.

1. Parameters to Open have a default setting that is programmed. If a parameter is not
specified (null) by the App, the default is utilized. The default is not modifiable by the
App at run time, but it can be overridden.

(1) Controls that are parameter driven are: Look In, Type, Name, Name List, DIg Title,
Conversion list, latest list, Open button name, Open As Copy button name.

(a) The App already receives values from controls: Look In, Name, Ok button, Copy
Button is already passed back.

(b) Some controls can be queried since they may be modified (edited or chosen from a
list) by the user: Type.

11. Properties of the DIg are sticky. They consist of the Sort, Column Order, List Display
Mode, DIg Dimensions, Default Tab. The App can set and query these values. The
user can affect all of these values. These properties are sticky, they are preserved for
the life of the P Open DIg component, across instantiations ofthe DIg, and across P

Novell Confidential 3
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instantiations. This means these values are preserved forever until the user or App
changes them.

lll. Set Directory as Default is no longer available from the Open DIg. It may however, be
supported by the App by querying the DIg for the Lookln value and remembering this.

iv. The Network, rename & remove directory functions may be accessible depending on App and
Namespace control.

8. Recently MS has standardized it's Office apps on a Explorer-like Open Dig standard. The MS DLG has both good and
bad points. It doesn't appear to be more functional than our design and the UI is not necessarily better from initial
responses from developers. We will not worry about modifying our design in this respect

9. Drag and drop will be supported from the DIg to the desktop, and from view to view (like the
Explorer) .

10. The preview will be a simple child control of the DIg (Future, Priority 2. The preview will
support the capahility to he "torn off" of the Open Dialog and then it would he come a stand
alone viewer, no longer a part of the Open Dialog (ie. if the Open is closed down, the viewer
would remain). This provides the capability for the user to then size the view and scroll
through or search in the view, copy from the doc, etc. When the mouse is over the preview,
it might change to a hand, to indicate the capability of "tearing ojf" the view. When it is
torn oj]; another preview ofthe currently selectedfile appears in its place. Thus multiple
independent tear ojfviews might exist and supported by a separate process.) Question Jack
should we use Envoy technology for the viewer? When a document is saved Envoy would print to a place in the
doc file an image of the document In the open Dig the Preview would be the Envoy viewer. This would give
searching capabilities. It would also allow for easy "tearing off" for full window viewing. What do you think? Joe:
This seems independent of the Dig. If the viewer component utilizes Envoy we should handle without additional
work. Tearing off presents another set of issues like longevity beyond the Open Dig...

11. Much of the functionality specified for Save(As) would be the same as for Open.

a. Provide a control to select the save format.
12. Much of the functionality specified for Select Directory would be the same as for Open ..

iL

The name field has initial focus. If a single, valid filename is specified, the "enter key" opens or saves.

Look In
a. Will work the same as the Win95 control except for the following:

1. The path will be displayed (i.e., if you have a folder structure named "c:\work\project
I", the current control displays only "project I". The proposal is that it would display
as "c:\work\project I". This will give the user reference).

(1) If the entire path won't fit in the field truncate using existing functionality -- "Squash it"
The trail will show when the list is dropped. Currently when the down arrow on the list box is pressed the
top item in the list is the folder that is current In the perfect world the trail back to the drive will show (Le.

e: <--- This would be at the top of the list
e: \work

e:\work\files <---instead of this

Browse Tab
1.

2.

d:
e:
z:

b. Look In traversal will work like the standard Open Dig Lookln control.

3. Of Type Control
a. This control (as mentioned above) has values (a list) passed in as a parameter. If not specified,

the default will be shown. Reading the list of registered types from the system will be the default (the
registry - the set of possible values is determined by the Name Space - file system, GroupWise, etc). For the
file system, this list would change anytime a new file type was registered or unregistered The calling App has
control via both mechanisms (registry, parameter passed

b. If a filter is typed in the Name Control the Type Control changes to reflect the filter/type if its
unique, otherwise it may show *. *. Copy existing functionality of the Common Open DIg
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here.
4. Listview Control

a. The List Control is the same as the Win95 List Control, including the launching of
applications, with the noted exceptions below. There is always a Listview control.
Additionally, the user can specify that he/she also wants a Treeview, resulting in an
Explorer like view.

1. It can be changed to an Explorer type view by using the context menus, the View menu or
by dragging the left edge of the List box to the right. Dragging the divider in the
Explorer view to the left will change the view back to the list control.

11. Its width will change depending on the showing of the Preview Control. When the
Preview Control is set to No Preview the List Control takes up the full width of the
dialog

111. It is sticky for the DIg. Ifyou change it to a specific type of view, the next time you enter
the dialog the list will still have that type ofview (under App control).

iv. Traversing up the hierarchy can be accomplished via the LookTn "Up a Folder" icon or via
Treeview.

v. First letter Name search will function in the list as in Win95 (keystroke delay causes first
letter look up otherwise it does a full name search based on the sequence of characters
typed in rapid succession. 'Non't full name searoh Iil<e Q)fists in Win96 funotion?

vi. This split view (tree and list) will be accessible as a separate component.
b. Items in the list are selected by the conventional methods and may be subject to the App's

flags (i.e. an App may not allow multiple selections):
1. Mouse

(1) mouse only:

(a) Single
(b) Multiple item, Contiguous.

(2) key and mouse

(a) Multiple items, Contiguous

(b) Multiple items, Non-Contiguous.
11. Keyboard

(1) Single
(2) Multiple items, Contiguous
(3) Multiple items, Non-contiguous?

iii. With an item selected current non-obvious keyboard functionality (f8 =copy, f7 =move, Gel-=­
EleIete, ins =create/new) will no longer be supported. We will however support Wing5 standard

keyboard functionality (i.e. cut, copy, paste: ctrl C,V,X... ) Question: Jack: Why not? What good does it
to Copy, Move, or Delete when nothing is selected? Are you removing all file management via the
keyboard? Lorrie: What is the "compelling" reason for lose of functionality for the keyboard user in this
release? Explorer's UI for File Management is far from User Friendly. Is cutting our current keyboard
user interface out really necessary? Many users of our Word Processor are KEYBOARD users to the
extreme. They despise the "rodent", their fingers never (or very seldom) leave the keyboard. Our
overall keyboard interface in "File Open" was enhanced considerably in 2.x SC right after our initial Beta
due to users suggestions and requirements. Bruce: In Wing5, the Shell has a "new" set of keyboard
commands to accomplish the same task - Ctrl C = copy to clipboard, Ctrl X = Cut to clipboard, Ctrl V =
Paste from Clipboard, Del = delete, and FilelNew creates a directory or file. Although it seems somewhat
un-natural, this extends the standard Windows clipboard keystrokes from Editing documents, etc. to the
file system. I don't know that MS did the best thing when they did this, but it is now the Wing5 standard.
(Copy is especially a problem because there is no apparent action. It needs to show some kind of action
to indicate that something happened) (By the way, I never knew about F8 & F7, or INS.. in our 16 bit
open - they certainly aren't obvious). Joe: loss of functionality may be realized by users who do
wildcard-type renames, though they can still accomplish this, perhaps more obviously in a drag and drog
metaphor.

c. Selecting an item in the list.
Places its' name or names in the Name control (maintain current functionality)

ii. Preview the doc if preview is up.
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lll. Places it's 'info' on the status bar,
(1) In single, places it's info there.
(2) Ifmultiple objects places number of objects and total size.
(3) If object contains a WordPerfect "Document Summary" that info is also placed on

status.
(4) Right mousing on the file entry itself would allow the same functionality we have now - Cut, copy, rename,

print, create shortcut, include all Explorer functionality, etc.
d. Pressing the backspace key while in the list control moves you back a level. Backspace while in the name control

does a backspace as expected.

e. The default view for this tab is the List View. It is sticky.
5. Name Control

a Proposal: Default text for this control: File Name. The text for this control will be a parameter
and under App control. (Future: address filelfolder paradigm naming issues as a priority 2.) JaGk: Can
this text ee moru#ee eY' the Galling Af3f3? l4#1at if it isn't a file name?

b. This is an editable field. It includes the file name and optional path. There is no 'history' combo box

(this functionality is accessible from the "Latest" menu. Jack: Question: Why no history? Why do you
have the path? Shouldn't it just be the name? Joe: Perhaps we should reexamine this decision. MS Office
makes use of this "reuse" control. If we do use this control, why should the "Latest" menu item survive? Colin:
2) I would rather see a pop-down list of recently opened files in under the combo box than have the list in a
menu (Latest). I argue that this is a better solution simply because it is a more commonly used solution to the
problem.

c. Maintain file encryption functionality. Don't allow actions that aren't allowed (viewing an encrypted file requires
password verification).

d. The name of a file can be typed. If a file exists that has that name, , the file is opened. Keep
current functionality.

e. A full path, name, and extension can be typed and the file will be opened. UNC and paths that
are too long are supported. Full path and filename with a terminating period overrides default extension
(those flags again)

f. If a value causes multiple files to be valid then those files are displayed in the list, from which
one may now be chosen to act upon. If just a name is typed and there are multiple files matching that
name (ie. "All Files and Folders (*.*)") but they have different extensions, then a dialog will come up explaining
that there are multiple files and to choose one from the list (same as the Common Open Dig). If no files were
hit, no action (open) is valid. (Priority 2: This does seem to work awkwardly in the Common Dig, perhaps we
can find a better way for this to work). Jael<: I just thought I would let you know that I don't like the 'Nay the
Gommon open 'Norl<s in this regard.

g. Multiple (contiguous and non-contiguous) selection will be possible, as is currently..
h. Dot dot (.. ) Would move back a folder. \\ would go to root. Also ".. \" supported. Three \\\

converted to \\ for (NDS). Netware: ... , .... , will be supported.

UNC's would be accepted and converted if necessary.
j. Standard ANSI extended chars will be supported if user does not have an international version.
k. Macro naming functionality will not be supported. This was utilized for naming of macros (i.e. ctrlc.wcm) and may

have greater problems co-existing with windows keyboard mapping (cut/copy/paste... ) (GonfliGts 'Nith Win95

usage (Gtrl a means select aiL.)). Question: JaGI<: ~Jot so. Ctrl A only vvorl<s vvhen I'm in the List. If I'm in
the Name field Ctrl A only beeps. Lorrie: What this means to the user is that they will no longer be able to type
control+shift+key (or control+key) while in the filename edit control for either saving or playing a macro. This
functionality is currently supported by a flag used only by the WP macro developers (to the best of my
knowledge). I do not like to see us lose functionality, however I'm not in a position to know if this is used
functionality by customers or just a good 01' carry over from the 5.x DOS days that is seldom used today. I
think we can afford to lose it, but....can we? Another point is since is it a flag only used by some (not global in
any way that I'm aware of) then that application developer can control it...so why lose functionality? Does
cutting this really buy us much? I realize that we need to make cuts to make our ship dates, but is this item
something we can afford to cut? I think it is, but....I'm not the expert. Scan non: I'm opposed to eliminating this
capability because it is an easy way for the user to get "single key" macros. The only other way is to go
through the keyboard editor, which makes it hardly worth the effort on his part. I can understand the need to
support the Wing5 standard usage of keys, and in those cases I believe the Wing5 definition should take
precedence. But we made it clear in the requirements meetings for the Open Dialog that we wanted this
feature preserved. It doesn't seem like it is that much work to do it (at least it wasn't in 16-bit code). Joe:
Having talked to Steve we realize that this suage is now somewhat archaic and potentially very confusing to
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users in the Wing5 environment. Currently we ship 2 such macros, one for FROM To in the equation editor,
and one for macro command inserter. Steve agreed we remove this functionality and if we get a lot of
heratache during beta, reconsider rmaifications of adding this back in.

6. Preview Control
a. At the right hand side of the dialog and just above the Cancel Button there would be a

Preview Control.
b. It could be turned off, show a preview of formatted text, show the contents of a document, or

display properties and information about the document.
c. The default would be preview contents..
d. It would look like a paper with a drop shadow behind it.
e. Right Clicking on the Preview would allow for expanding it to full screen or Opening the

document. Right mouse should also allow to display in hex, to copy to clipboard, to print,
to change display font, etc. (Maintaining current functionality.)

f. The image for the Formatted Preview could come from a bitmap image stored in the doc file,
the SCC viewers that are being modified to accomplish this task, or if a formatted view
was not available then a message in the place would say something like, "No Preview
Available for this

g Clicking on the preview when the Preview menu item is set for Preview on Demand would
preview the selected item. Moving to a different item would not clear the Preview.
Clicking on the preview would update the preview window with the selected item. (Priority 2 Provide an
indicator that the preview window is not in sync with the list. Maybe gray the frame, conten!, ... some UI that
says it's "dusty") Jacl<: 'Nouldn't this be confusing. Shouldn't moving to another item clear the ViO'N until it is
clicl<ed again?

h. If the user moved focus from the filename/object to preview, focus should stay in the
previewer until user moves it. The file name should remain highlighted, but not focused.
Must be able to move focus to and from preview using the keyboard. Name needs to

remain "king" especially when Saving.
The control has a label "Preview: Formatted", etc depending on the mode being previewed.

j. The Preview settings follow through on all tabs (because the menu is global)
k. The types of files previewed would be dependent on the Components installed by the user (application) and which

CV drivers were present CV drivers by default include ASCII, wp60/61 , envoy viewer and those specific to the
user's application.

First Entry in the list is NOT highlighted (for Preview). Jack: Why?
(Rationale. The original design specifies that on entry to the DIg the first file will be highlighted. This seems to
me to be a huge difference from the way Open works now. Does this not work? Is this a compelling change?
By highlighting the first file (something must be selected to view it), the user will have his focus changed from
a name to enter to the first file in the list. Right now if the user hits return at the Open Dig instantiation nothing
happens. In the first-entry-selected method, the user upon hitting return will open that file. Was it the users
intent to open the first file in the list? Furthermore, there may be a speed hit for "distant" files in remote
namespaces.)

m. View pane visible by default.
n. Maintain file encryption functionality. Don't allow actions that aren't allowed (viewing an encrypted file requires

password verification) Password verification is the apps responsibility. Question: Colin: 1) How do the apps
ask for a password, or are all password related functions up to the individual apps?

7. Open Button
a Push button that:

i. Opens a selected item
ih--GF-Launches a selected application. As for un registered file types, each name space would need to handle

the issues of selection of an application (the shell already handles this for the file system
If the user goes and opens a doc that may not l<no'N what app it belongs to (e.g. DAD open doing an
Open on *.txt) , the application associated 'Nith the file type in the registry is launched. If a doc has no
associated app, there is a standard system dialog that gets displayed, allO'.¥ing the user to select an app, or
define a new association f=or new association use groupwise or explorer functionality ("always use... "
check box.) The app would I<eep that association somev\lhere for future use And is under app control not
tJ'le...f.S.~ Or Launches the associated application. Each name space needs to handle determining
what the associated application is (the shell already handles this for the file system, using the registry &
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registered file types). For un-registered types (no associated application), the name space needs to
display a dialog allowing the user to select an app (or specify an association - whatever makes sense for
that Namespace), or define new associations (similar to the one used by GroupWise, or the
Explorer - include an "always use... " check box.) The Namespace would store this association
somewhere (probably the registry) for future use. (The idea here is different than that ())(pressed in the
arafI:. The App does not control (or know) the App<=>Type association, the namespaces does. The
Namespace is what decides what the associated App is, and how to launch it, therefore it must handle
un-registered types or new associations. This is the way the shell works, and all other namespaces need
to work the same way. (Joe: In the future, there may be the occasion where the App may want to make
the determination and under its control do some morphing of targeted data. Perhaps this info though could
be passed to the Namespace In Tapestry the concept of visualization applied to unchanging content may
utilize this type of implementation: A spreadsheet task (App) may visualize some data as a chart, or as a
spreadsheet)

iii. Enters a Folder or moves up a level by utilizing the Name field as a folder navigator (.. , \).
Jack: How does the Open Button move you up a level?

iv. Opens/launches the file specified by a complete path and name typed in the name control.

v. Sends a message to the associated app specifYing the item to be opened/launched.
vi. Dialog then closes down.

b. The default button.
c The text for the button is app specified as a parameter (with a default).
d. Stickiness of the DIg is specified above and is under app control.

8. Open As Copy
a. Push button that: (similar to Open Button above but)

i. Sends a message to the calling app or associated app that the item should be opened as
copy.

ii. Since the Open As Copy button title is under app control, it may change it and interpret
the button to mean what ever it likes (i.e. Macro on Disk... )

9. Cancel button
a. Push button that cancels the Open dialog and settings that the user made (functionality similar to

Open above).

b. Jack: Does it Cancel all changes? Makes it not sticky?
10 Mini-Toolbar Control (Common Open Dialog, 4 buttons) These buttons will not exist on the tool bar. This

also alleviates confusion to the user by making the view modes more local to the tab and not on a global tool bar.
a. Always on the dialog. Can not be removed.

b. Contains the following four buttons that exist on the common Open DIg.
i. Move Up A Level
11. New Folder
111. List View
iv. Detail View

11. Most of the intended File Management functions will exist via the menu, drag-drop.

Find by Name Tab

1. Look In Control (Same as Above)
2. Include Subfolders Control

a. Allows a Find to begin at the point indicated in the Look In control and include the subfolders
b. Include subfolders defaults to checked.
c. This does not carry over to other tabs. Each tab is independent

3. Type Control
a. This tab will NOT have a Type Control. This will only be available from Advanced Find.

4. Named Control
a. This field is used to enter the name ofthe file or item to search for.
b. Contains a history of name search criteria, which is not the same as the list maintained for the
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Name field at the bottom of the dialog. The last ten entries are stored in this list
c. This is an editable combo box
d. This field is blank. on entry.

5. List Control
a. The List Control is the same as the Win95 List Control, including the launching of

applications, with the following exceptions.
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
dialog.

111. It is sticky. Ifyou change it to a specific type ofview, the next time you enter the
dialog's tab the list will still have that type ofview.

b. Selecting an item in the list places its' name in the Name control (not the Named control). The
first item is not automatically selected. Jack: Which name control? Both name controls?

c. It will default to the detail view. It does not support tree view.
d. It will be empty when entering this tab until a Find is performed.

6. Name Control
a. Same as Above

7. Preview Control
a. Same as Above

8. Open Control
a. Same as Above
b. Not the default button when entering the Tab.
c. Becomes the default button after a successful Find.

9. Open As Copy
a. Same as Above

10. Cancel button
a. Same as Above

11. Mini-Toolbar Control
a. Same as Above

12. Find Now/Stop Button
a. Would begin a find using the default QuickFinder Index of the Area selected in the Look In,

modified by the Subfolder Control and any text or pattern in the Named Control. It
would Find only items whose name match.

b. Matches are put in the List Control as they are found.
c. When a Find is in progress the button title changes to Stop Finding. When it is pressed the

Find process ends and displays results to that point. For this time frame, there will not be a
"resume search" capability. This button is the Find button of the Find tab (we have dismissed the
advanced Find Dig when we do the Find there).

13. Reset Button. This resets ALL search criteria back to defaults (same as when the tab was
activated for the first time. Resets ALL search criteria of a Find (any changes to Look Tn,
SubFolders, or Named... ) to the launch state ofthis DIg's tab.

14. Advanced Find Button
a. Advanced Find will be implemented as another DIg that is brought up over the open DIg.
b. The user fills out the complex query. Once he hits the Find button, the advanced DIg exits
c. The results of the advanced DIg are communicated to the Open DIg Find tab. The results are

displayed in the Open DIg tab context as results are found.. If the user pressed Stop, they
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remain in the Open Dialog, NOT IN THE ADVANCED FIND DIALOG.
d. The result pane will change to show the advanced fInd information (similar to detail view).
e. The Open Dig Find tab screen will change to show as much of the query as possible in the

available controls. The user can alter only these parameters of the advanced find from the tab.
f. Since each tab is independent, EVERYTHING on the tab (and the hidden advanced settings)

is preserved when bouncing among tabs.

Find by Content Tab
Same as above except:

1. Containing word(s) Control
a. This is an editable combo box
b. When you enter this tab this field has nothing in it and it is selected.
c. This field is used to enter the content to search for.
d. The last ten content based queries entries are stored in this list.

2. Include other forms of the words check box
3. Preview Control.

a. Default view mode is Content.
b. The user can navigate and search..

Misc.
1. Logicals (These are important to Paradox...)

a. User can type in (use) logicals in the Name control.
b. The user can only create logicals in Regedit or the System Policy Editor. Question: Jack: Is

this going to meet the need of Paradox? Have you spoken with them?

c. Logicals may show up in the Quicklist if the user captures one.
d. Logicals are not otherwise visible, nor can they be chosen in the Dig. Regedit or the System

Policy Editor (if we ship one) will "see" logicals.
e. The expansion of a logical happens internally in the FS. The result of this expansion is seen

only by the user ifthe expansion results in one and only one tangible hit. (For example if
logical <gtype>=*bmp and *bmp is a registered type it would be selected in the Type field.)

f A new item "multiple hit" would show up if the expansion results in multiple hits for the
various control (LookTn, Type). (For example Tf<gtype>=*bmp;*wpg and both these are
registered types we cannot select both so the "Multiple Hit" item would be selected.) (In the
future: multiple item hits as well as specifying multiple item queries will be supported by
something like the Tapestry concept to allow multiple Namespaces, Type to be chosen within
the LookIn, Type controls)

g. For Save and Select Directory allow both single and multiple hits, depending on the app
2. Select Directory

a. Support Select Directory functionality by limiting to the Open Tab and only allowing selection
of directory functionality.

b. Explorer like view should be default.
3. Common Open Dialog

a. We will support Common Open Dialog functionality within our Open wrapper.
b. The installation default would be the PF Open Dialog. The user specifies to use the Common

Open Dig or the Novell PF Open Dialog at Custom installation. It cannot be changed
anywhere else.

4. Custom Installation must support choosing of the Open Dialog component.
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5. Display ofHidden System files will function as expected when set within WIN95 properties and
under Namespace control.

6. OLE automation issues for macro recording will be supported. Details are pending.
7. There will be a button (some Ul) to allow the users to: "Return Control to DMS". This would be

on the DIg only if ODMA is enabled. (This provides access to Softsolutions type of services)
8. Question: Rick The far east uses an Input Method Editor (IME) to compose far east characters. In the past this has

been implemented in the Windows Editor so that all the Windows Editor controls automatically had the IME support It
seems that this is changing and either going with the expanded Win95 edit control (one that handles WP characters) to
FRED (RTF edit control). If everyone uses the same Windows editor, which FRED is suppose to be, then each
APP/COM does not have to worry about the IME support. Otherwise, each APP/COM has to implement the IME entry.

9. Question: It has been proposed to give access to the Dig menu to Namespace providers. This way they may alter
the menu to suit their particular needs. One of the major users of this will be the QuickList function. Users of this
functionlality (apps) will be restricted to the types of modifications they may make to the menu to preserve the Open Dig
functionlality since it assumes certain layout of the menu.
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Open: Open. Sample dialogs only. Some of the items here do not match the Function Doc.
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Open: Find by Name Sample dialogs only Some of the items here do not match the Function Doc.

Open: Find by Content. Sample dialogs only Some of the items here do not match the Function Doc.
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Explorer

Novell Confidential

Bitmaps
Multi
Music
Random
Starter
Admodule.Els3
Adw30
Adw30
Adwfont
Aftardrk
BitmapsEldc
Ecologicas3
Editfil8
Install
Mesg_ad3
modul8s
Nonsense
PIElce
Shlobj.idl
Trouble

File Folder
File Folder
File Folder
File Folder
File Folder

lKB AS3 File
268KB Application
6~KB Help File

8KB Fontfile
1KB ConfigurBtion S8...

10KB ADC File
lKB AS3 File
1KB T8xt Docum8nt

16KB Help File
2KB WordPerfect Do .
1KB ConfigurBtion S8 .
1KB Text Document
1KB Text Document

25KB IDL File
56KB Help File

14

5/30/85218 PM
5/30/85218 PM
5/30/85218 PM
5/30/85218 PM
5/30/85218 PM
7/11/85850 AM
5/31/85 102~ AM
7/11/8~ 100 AM
7/18/84101 AM
6/21/852.08 PM
5/30/85220 PM
7/1 0/85 847 PM
7/11/84100AM
7/11/94300 AM
7/1 1/84100 AM
5/30/852.20 PM
7/11/84300 AM
10(31/84330 PM
6/22/851128 AM
7/1 1/84100 AM
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WingS Common Open
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Page 93.of98

From: Joe Selfiore[SMT?,joeb@MICROSOFT.com]
Sent: Thursday, March 21, 1996 10:54 ~
To: 'Andrew Schulman'
SUbject: RE: Creating namespaces?

Sorry it's taken me a little while to get back to you been recovering
from the PDC. :)

We have a preliminary doc that we've been 9~v~ng to people who ask for
it, and we're getting this cleaned up and putting together sample code
to post on the web and ship in the Ap~il MSDN.

Here's the doc itself, I'll pass along the samples next week when
they're ready, and we will have both of these on the web within a couple
of weeks as well. (I'll let you know the URL once it's setup.)

If you have comments or questions on the doc, please let me know.

Thanks!

PS - the letter of explanation below has been going out with the doc.~. r

This giveG the backg:-ound as to why these have been "b--list" in the past
(we want to reduce the possibility of·shell extensions getting written
that run in process and take down the shell + the other shell
extensions). and explains th~ solution we're adopting in order to
publish these more Widely.

>Dear ISV,
>

'., >It -has come to Microsoft's atcent.ion that a number. of ISVs have been
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>trying to reverse engineer the Windows 95 Shell Extension mechanisms in
>order to integrate their application with the windows Explorer. Due to
>some architectural limitations of the cur4ent design, Microsoft
>originally chose not to publish these mechanisms until the design could
>be changed to work robustly on both Windows 95 and Windows NT. With
>the upcoming beta release of Windows NT, these limitations have been
>addressed, and the extension mechanisms will be pUblished. The
>following document discusses the limitations, and the solutions
>available to ISVs both today and with the upcoming release of Windows
>NT.
:>
>Limitations with the current Implementation.
:>
>with the current implementation of the Windows 95 shell, all of the
:>dpplicacion5 that make up the shell run in the same process. I.E. The
>Desktop (which includes the taskbar}, My Computer, Network
>Neighbourhood, the Briefcase, th~ Recycle Bin, and any other instances
:>of the explorer that are launched are run in a single process. What
:>this means is that if any of the above applications fail, they will
:>bring down the entire ~hell, including all of the shell extensions, and
>the desktop. Under the current extension mechanism, that means that
:>any outside application that was written as a shell extension via
>IShellView and IShellFolder, would also have the capability to bring
:>down the the entire shell, or be brought down if another shell
>extension failed.
>
>There is a solution to this in Windows 95, and that is to allow
>applicacions that are written as shell extensions to run as "rooted".
>1.8. each one runs in its own process. There are still drawbacks to
:>this approach for ISVs as it means they cannot appear in the same tree
:>view as the rest of the f~lesystem, and they can't display their files
>in the right pane of the same window as the rest of the file system.
>While this is acceptable for most ISVs, there exists a class of
>applications which really need to be integrated into the·shell. As
>well, there is a performance penalty in launching a rooted application
:>rather than just loading the view in process.
>
>Solution to the Current Limitations.
:>

>In order to allow rsvs the greatest flexibility, Microsoft has decided
>to rearchitect the processes slightly. The current plan is to separate
:>the Desktop!taskbar process from the rest of the explorer extensions
>that live in the shell namespace. This means that the desktop will be
~one process, and My Computer, Network Neighbourhood, the Briefcase etc
>will all live in another process (referred to as the primary explorer) .
> Beca~se they are known and trusted processes, it is acceptable for
>them to run together. Now, if a shell process goes down, the desktop
>and taskbar will still be active, and yo~ can relaunch the other
>applications easily.
>
~What does this mean for an rsv?
>

'>An ISV still has three choices, write their own application (using the
>sample code provided), run rooted, or integrate fully into the primary
>explorer.

>A) Write your own. Sample code has been provided with this document,
>and in the SDK which provides the Windows explorer ur to an
>application. rsvs are strongly encouraged to use this solution
>wherever possible. It gives you the UI you want, while allowing you to

httpJ/www.compware.demon.co.uk/huey/w95vfd.txt
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>modify the programming interface to suit the needs of your application.
~ rt also allows you to tune your entire application for performance,
>and strip out any unnecessary portions of the full blown explorer. You
>also never have to worry about another application ~ringing down your
>application,
>
>B) Run "Rooted". In the case that you don't want to do your own, but
>you do not need to appear in the namespace itself, then you should run
>rooted. This will mean' that you appear in the risht hand pane of the
>explo~er, and if a user clicKs on your application, it will launch
>another instance of the explorer process for your application. You
>have to adhere to the standard interface that we provide for the
>Explorer, but you do not have to worry about other applications
>bringing you down.
>
>C) Run as part of the NameSpace. If your application absolutely cannot
>run rooted, you are willing to risk being taken down at any time by
>another application, and you are willing to be extra careful testing
>your application to make sure you are not going to take anyone else
>down, then go ahead and run as part of the name space. In this
>sltuation it is imperative that you are not dependant on the fact that
>you are running in the same process as the rest of the shell,
>especially in terms of data access. You should definitely not be using
>any data structures that are part of the shell. At some point in ~he

>£uture we plan to fully remote IShellFolder and IShellView which would
>mean that at that time you will no longer be running in-process,
>although your application will have no way of knowing that. As long as
~you don't depend on inproc behaviour today, you~ application will
>continue to work tomorrow.
>
>Other notes:
>with the next NT release which supports this functionality, all of the
"interfaces that contain strings have been overloaded with unicode ­
>e.g. IContextMenu,GetcommandString( ... GCS_HELPTEXTW ), etc.
>
>Remember that in order to get the windows 95 compatible Logo, you must
>also test Oh NT. It is especially impor.tant that you test your shell
>extensions on NT as well.
>

;>----------
>From: Andrew Schulman[SMTP;andrew@ora.coml
>8ent: Wednesday, March 13, 1996 6:26 PM
>To: Joe Belfiore
>Subject: Creating namespaces?
>
>Joe,
>
>Brad silverberg gave me your name and email address, suggesting you
>could tell me where to find documentation on how to create name6paces~
>in
>Win95. Not APIs to browse existing namespaces, but AFIs for creating
>new ones. Brad insisted to me that these have been documented, but I
>(and others) haven't been able to find any doc. Could you help me out?
>A
>URL would be great, but some pointer to a specific MSDN doc or whatever
>would be great too.
>
>Thanks much,

httn:llwww.comnware,demon.co,uklhuev/w95vfd.txt
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>Andrew Schulman
>Senior ~ditor. O'Reilly & Associates
>andreW@ora.com
>http://www.ora.com/windows/
>

htto://>VWW.comoware.demon.co.uklbuev/w9Svfd.txt
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Novell Legal Department Memorandum

To:

From:

Date:

Subject:

Mark Calkins

Ryan Richards

January 12, 1995

Windows 95 Logo Requirements

cc: Glen Mella
Bruce Brereton
Dave Moon
David Bradford
Ad Rietveld
Bob Frankenberg
David Owen
Todd Titensor

The information contained in this memorandum is PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL and is intended only for the
use of the individual or entity named above. Ifyou are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that
dissemination, distribution or copying of this document or communication of its content are prohibited. Ifyou have
received this dOCWJlent in error, please immediately notify us 60 that it can be returned to us. Thank you.

I want to give you and those copied on this memo an update of our discussions of the Microsoft
Windows 95 logo program. Glen Mella, Todd Titensor, Greg Jones, David Owen and I met this
morning to try to reach a decision on a recommended response to the logo program. As you
know, the program requires that software programs bearing the logo be certified as compatible
with both Windows 95 and Windows NT. For reasons we have discussed at length before,
while we would like to use the logo, we are not willing at this time to satisfy the Windows NT
compatibility requirements. There has been much discussion on how we should approach
Microsoft with our concerns about the program. A-letter addressed to Microsoft's Brad
Silverberg has been prepared for your signature which sets out the ~hnicaldifficulties we
face in trying to satisfy the dual compatibility requirements. The letter asks that the NT
compatibility requirement be dropped. If the response is no, then we must decide how to
position our refusal to use the logo.

Two responses that we have considered thus far are 1) to make a high profile challenge to
Microsoft's program. requirements, and 2) to ignore the program and, when asked, state that
we simply do not intend to support it. The point of a high-profile challenge would be to garner
the pressures of the press and other ISVs to bring Microsoft to alter the logo program. In
either challenging the program or ignoring it, w~ would be free to make clear on our
packaging and in our advertisements that our products run on Windows 95.

In discussions about a high-profile approach, Greg and David noted the similarities in this
logo program with Novell's YES certification and logo program. Novell's program similarly
requires dual compatibility. An ISV's NetWare compatible program must also be compatible
with UnixWare, Lanalyzer, and other technologies. It appears that if we are to challenge
Microsoft on this program, they could throw it back in our faces. We are already experiencing
substantial push back from our ISVs. There is a good argument to be made that if we push
this with Microsoft, our ISVs will have increased standing to challenge the YES program.
Furthermore, David, who is Vice President of Novell Labs Division where the program is
administered, informed us today that there is an internal movement toward more rigorous and
expansive YES program requirements.

NL2 0000120
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Our conclusion today was to recommend you send the letter to Brad and see how he responds.
If Microsoft either modifies the program generally, or cuts Novell its own deal, then we have
what we want: use of the logo without the NT compatibility requirement. If the response is
"No", then we proceed without the logo and decide how to position our decision. We certainly
have good arguments to support a decision not to support the logo program: 1) NT's APIs are
not the same as Windows 95's APls, 2) achieving NT compatibility would require substantial
additional development, and 3) Novell's development plans do not include NT in the
immediate future. Consequently, we are choosing not to participate in the logo program. At
this point, our inclination is to take the lower profile approach. There is sufficient interest in
the press and among other ISVs that our decision will very quickly become known publicly.

A couple of cautions: We should take care not to discuss this with other ISVs or otherwise
attempt to dissuade them from supporting the logo program as such activities could violate
antitrust law. We should also take care not to give inconsistent messages as we speak with
the press or in public forums. My recommendation is that, until we have heard from Brad and
have decided what tack to take on this issue, we refrain from publicly challenging the logo
program.

I believe Glen will give you more details oftoday's discussion and confirm my
recommendation that the letter be sent. Ifyou have any questions, please let me know.

NL2 G000121
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From:
To:
Date:
Subject:

Ryan, Greg:

Todd Titensor
WPCORPl.CORP.GSJONES, WPCORPl.CORP.RYANR
2/2/95 3:27pm
Win95 Logo Requirements· Issues wi NT

Below is the beginning of a cover message to the attached document that we are planning to
send to Brad Silverberg, VP of Operating Systems at MS regarding the NT requirement for
Win95. As you may be aware, Bob F. has stated (in a meeting with the QP team, Mark, Glen,
Bruce) that he does not accept the NT requirement and if it is not removed from the logo
requirements list we will simply not support the logo. In an effort to inform Microsoft of this
and make a formal request that it be removed, our plan is as follows:

1. Send the attached doc. to Brad S. and request a conf. call to discuss it
2. Formally request that the NT requirement be removed

How this meeting goes will determine our next step. Our intent is to go through the process of
directly voicing our concerns and requesting this change with MS before going public, if in fact
we decide to do that at some point.

Advice requested: Are there any legal issues you see with the preface message <below - which
Mark will modify/augment) and / or the attached document? Is there any legal wording you'd
suggest or areas of concern that we should be aware of?

As you know, we've signed something (?) committing to the First Wave program. Under this
agreement, we've stated that we will ship WPWin (doesn't apply to other apps) within 90 days
of their gold master. RTM for them is June, our plan is to ship WPWin (RTM) Sept. 15th. We
should be on schedule this if all goes well.

Please advise.
Todd
*****************************************************
Dear Brad,

Attached is a document describing many of the technical issues or concerns we have identified
in our efforts to support Windows NT as part of the Windows 95 Logo requirements. Much of
what is outlined requires significant work to ensure that our applications "degrade gracefully"
on NT and are compatible with both platforms. All of what is outlined requires additional
resources and time in both development and testing. Our choice would be to expend these
resources and effort in other areas. .

We feel the Windows NT requirement is excessive and not in line with our goals and objectives
at this time and ask that it be removed from the Win95 compliance list.

Thanks for you attention to this letter and request.

Sincerely,
Mark Calkins
CC: WPCORPl.CORP.GLENM, WPCORP1.CORP.MCALKINS, WPDEV.B...

CONFIDENTIAL
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Erik Stevenson

From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Brad Silverberg
jimall; 'smtp:bobmu'; paulma
FW: WP vist
Thursday. November 18. 1993 9:38AM
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From: davidcol
To: bradsi; bradstr; dennisad; georgem; jefft; joeb
Cc: davidcol; doughe; johnlu; marionho; robp
Subject: WP vist
Date: Monday, November 15, 1993 5:48AM

Jefft, Bradstr, and I went to WordPerfect last Thursday to talk to them
about what we thought a good Chicago app was and what barriers they would
have to doing one close to the time Chicago shipped. Overall, the visit was
good. There were around 10 WP guys, (VP dev lead types) sining around a
table so it was much more intimate than the Borland visit. They weren't
nasty at all, in fact had good feedback and decent questions.

These guys will bet on Chicago, they've never had any doubts about that.
They want to create a single binary that exploits Chicago and supports NT.

(exactly what we want) However, they need to fo think about this before
they can concretely indentify any barriers. The kind of help the KNOW they
need is help with sample code, help with style guide issues, good docs, etc.
They thought a private forum on compuserve might be good, email contacts

would be great too. We need to decide how to support these guys. They will
have a separate win 16 version which they'll keep on the market until they
don't need to anymore. It was interesting to see how enthusiastic WP was
about Chicago, much in contrast with the ho-hum attitude of our own apps
group.

Br"adstr was going to get email names of all the guys and who does what. I
think it would be good for us to establish decent relations with these guys.

They were very happy about us deciding to document the shell extentions. I
explained conceptually how the extensibilitY would work and what controls
they'd have. Since they just aquired a document management system (I forget
from who) I assume they will want to plug that in, plus WP mail and other
part of WP office too. I'm sure they will also supply shell property sheets
for their docs too.

They use the char versions of the MS tools, so the M5 PDK is exactly what
they need to get started and they will. There were lots and lots of other
areas that they liked a bunch; the shell, move/copy for the transfer model
(I said it was still open). new help features, (especially jumping from help
into an app), but I won't get into it all here. I anticipate that WP will
have a very exploitive Chicago app ready close to when Chicago ships.

Here are some other notes and action items I wrote down: (most of the nits
came from Tom Crux(?) who is their shared code dev lead, worth gening to
know for lots of reasons, not the least of which he would be the one to
directly support Appware if that was going to happen for WP}

- interested in shipping a good viewer with Chicago. I said we would be
very interested if it was 50·80 kb. "They wanted to know if there'd be a
good viewer for word in the box. we need to followup on this in a few
weeks.

Page 951
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- would like to see a global key/local key scheme for the for the registry.
global keys are set centrally by a net admin. Apparently they have done

this sort of thing privately for wordperfect. They would be willing to
share their requirements andhow they went about doing it since this is all
shipping stuff. Ropb or Johnlu should talk with them. Bradstr, please give
rob and john the name of the correct WP guy to talk with.

• mentioned multithreaded MFC, or rather lack of.

- thought we should allow property browsing in the shell. IE lock down a
property window, then select random docs and see it's properties. I think
we are going to do this as part of the viewer Ur.

• they call the winnet apis directly since they have their own fileman and
will probably continue to do so. they want tD make sure we document these
at least in the ddk. would like to have docs written which decribe better
how apps call winnet, but not a requirement.

• complained that help only allowed for max index size of 9000. marionhD?

- thought help should allow OLE embeddings. great idea, nD time to get it
dDne..

- shell needs tD allow extending the find cDmmand. at minimum allow apps to
extend the menu to search other stores. We should also allow a simple
global that just returned results in separate results windows for each type
of thing being searched. I think this would be pretty easy. Joe, we should
think about this some more. I bet we can do something really cool that
simple. What does the mac do for searching across mail and files?

- wanted different sprites. partially tranparent thing that moved around on
the window. they have a "coach" thing which moves around and points things
out. apparently it's really really hard. they thought they heard davidw
say he did this for Chicago. george?

- they want to set a global search path in Windows and not force the system
to reboot. An app search path would be great, but they thought we didn't
need that much. Basically just add to the global search path from in
Chicago would be great. Perhaps we should have a WindowsPath = and it was
just appended tD the dos path when we searched. george?
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To:
From:
cc:
Subject:
Date

Paul:

GW-POSTMASTER.INFORMATION.SYSENG, PROVO.SLC.JOHN EPENETER,
Scott Nelson
GLENM, TODDTR, DAVEL, WPCORP2.PUBD.GRAZ
Re: Your Response -Forwarded -Reply -Reply -Reply -Reply
Friday, April 7, 1995 3:09 PM

Thank you for your message expressing concerns about incompatibilities between
PerfectOffice 3.0 and Wing5. The purpose of my response is to help you understand our
position.

First, PerfectOffice 3.0 released in December of 1994, when the only Win95 betas that
were available were still very unstable and quite frankly, were still changing. Back then,
we allocated no resources to test our Win95 compatibility nor from a development
perspective did we try to add code which provided Win95 compatibility. I think its safe to
say that other groups in the company have done likewise. To assume that PerfectOffice
3.0 would run without any hitches under the current or previous betas is
wrong--especially since we have made no effort to do such or made claims that it would.
Even MS apps don't run flawlessly under Wing5.

Second, we are now at a point where Win9S development is our highest priority. Over
the last several months development has been busy coding for WingS and testing has
been testing current products to ensure Win9S compatibility. We have discovered many
problems--many of them are system problems. The good news is that the cooperation
between Microsoft and Novell has been very good. The problems are being addressed
and fixed. In fact, over the next couple of weeks our developers and testers will visit
Redmond once again to make sure that we are making continued progress. The end
result will be a 16-bit version of PerfectOffice 3.0 that runs very nicely under Wing5.

Third, some of the ways that you described PerfectOffice's current behavior under
WingS were pretty harsh--in fact exaggerated. I know of others who are running
PerfectOffice 3.0 with few problems under Win95. The point is, we understand the
problem and there is a professional way to log problems and concerns through testing,
bug databases, etc. There is no need to send out a message that condemns the
products which, at this stage of the game, were never intended to run under Win9S.

I hope this message helps. As you talk to customers and with other individuals inside
the company you'll take a different approach. We are working very hard to insure
success of our 16-bit apps under Win9S.

Scott Nelson
Product Marketing Director, NBA

Page 1
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Project Proposals for "Storm"

- Time frames are the critical decision to be made for finalizing the Storm strategy. The trade off is the quality
of the product solutions that can be provided versus the time frame for critical buying decisions.
- The following table outlines three proposals.
- Following the tables are likely results of pursuing these solutions
- Our recommendation follows
- See Appendix A for the details of the Storm research and proposals.

Proposal ONE (primarily a WIN95 strategy for Sept. 30 1995)

PROBLEMS

1)This results in an aggressive time frame with a lot
of release overhead for a minimal amount of real
development time.
Design : 1 lh months
Development: 3 lh months
Release overhead: 3 lh-4 months
Suite overhead: lh month

2)QP believes this is barely achievable with all their
resources and with no additional functionality.
Currently, they are not receiving the best critical
reviews and by focusing on another short term date
they believe that QP will fall signifIcantly behind in
the standalone competitive race and we will be killed
in the market. They feel that an additional three
months would help them compete effectively. They
also believe a 4-month beta is needed for a significant
release such as a WIN95 new product.

3) PR and shared code are in a very similar situation
to QP from a development standpoint. They are
nervous about that date and would have to make
significant corner-cutting moves to make the date.
They also recommend three additional months of
development.

4) WP is only on target for this date if the other
pieces they rely on are there on time (such as Shared
Code, Draw and Chart). The WP team is the best
prepared because of advance work and significant
resources but they still feel the schedule is aggressive
but achievable.

ADVANTAGES

1. This is about four months after MS Office is
scheduled to ship and five months after WIN95 is
scheduled to ship. Many analysts believe we must
have a solution within three months or at the latest
within six months to be competitive on WIN95. This
is aggressive yet possible with great effort and we
would not risk being perceived as "late" to a key
platform "again".

2. We probably can include enough items from our
four key areas to at least tell a story and show some
direction for our office product. These four areas
are: WIN95 products, network capabilities, more
seamless work process, and some best of breed
enhancements on the WP and GW products.

3. We would be close enough in timing to ride and
shout with the WIN95 wave that will sweep our
industry According to marketing our industry has
never seen the likes ofthe WTN95 advertising
campaign and we must be on this wave or we will be
crushed by it. This is still difficult with a Sept. 30
date but with some clever marketing we can show
and present enough to stay a contender in the market.

4. Some teams will be able to do some parallel
development efforts and release a more significant
upgrade the following year.

NOV·B01491217
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5)GroupWise is tentatively planning on an Oct. 1,
1995 release for WIN95. This is one month later
than the business application goal. They would
prefer to delay this release to focus more on the 16 bit
release.

6)Otlice will be competing with a significant upgrade
to MS Otl1ce and Lotus Smart Suite. Both of these
products have had 15 month or greater development
cycles (as opposed to our proposed nine month cycle)
because they already had a suite on the market. We
assume that they will raise the bar of expectation with
their next release.

2

Proposal TWO (Solution Driven Strategy for Jan 1996)

PROBLEMS ADVANTAGES

1)This is about seven months after MS Otl1ce is 1. A more significant development time frame before
scheduled to ship and eight months after WIN95 is the release overhead is incurred.
scheduled to ship. Many analysts believe we must Design: 2-2 Y2 months
have a solution within three months or at the latest Development: 5 Y2 - 6 months
within six months to be competitive on WIN95. Release overhead: 3 Y2-4 months
Perhaps we have "missed" the market. The party is Suite overhead: Y2 month
over.

2) We can include many items from our four key
areas to show direction and to capture market share.
These four areas are: WIN95 products, network
capabilities, more seamless work process, and
significant best of breed enhancements on all
products. Basically we can deliver double (or more)
the improvements in the products with the additional
three months.

3) PR and shared code can do meaningful upgrades
that are needed in our competitive market. This
would include items such as common scripting, more
modular shared code, reusable charting pieces for QP
and PR.

4) The WP team has many ways to provide greater
solutions for their customers. They have significant
contextual inquiry data that suggests areas of
improvement that would be doable with a longer time
frame.

NOV·B01491218
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5)GroupWise would fit into this time frame.

6)Office will be able to see some of the most
significant upgrades to MS Oflice and Lotus Smart
Suite. We may even be able to address and minimize
some of their most significant advances. We will
have almost as much time as our competitors with
their 15 months or greater development cycles. We
should be able to raise the bar over what they will
provide.

7) This would be in a similar time frame to the
Netware 4.2 release. We could play up our synergies
with this platform. We are establishing our ties to
Netware and that we will always be leading edge with
networking solutions.

Proposal Three (WPWin Sept 1995 then the rest later April 1996)

PROBLEMS ADVANTAGES

1) The following groups would still have a very 1. This would buy additional time for QP and
aggressive time frame with a lot of release overhead: GroupWise.
Shared Code, PR Draw, PR Chart, QuickFinder, WP
Design : 1 lh months
Development: 3 lh months
Release overhead: 3 lh-4 months
Suite overhead: lh month

2) We could send an unwanted message that we are 2. We could show that we will be WIN95 players
not a suite player. with our biggest product. We could capture

significant standalone sales with at least that product.

3) By pushing WP first, it will actually delay the 3. Perhaps this will buy enough time for us to make
Perfect Office release for WIN95 by approximately significant progress on other products for the suite.
the 3-4 months of overhead required for a release
since projects such as Shared Code will have two
releases.

Most likely conclusions from the three options

Option 1
- We release October 31, 1995 because development is getting better at making dates but they still are one month
late (typically development has been two or more months late). WP competes favorably in the WIN95
standalone market. QP and PR will be considered one major release behind their competitors. Perfect Office
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will have a somewhat better networking story but will still be considered a little late and mostly a rev behind
because of QP and PR The marketing team will pre-promote the product and most customers will wait until
we release to do the major upgrade on WIN95 suites. However, we will lose many customers because we will
lose the competitive reviews. There is a greater risk oflost quality due to the aggressive schedule and ifwe
shipped with poor quality we would destroy all credibility in the market. Prediction of market share for perfect
office by the end of 1996 is 15%.

Option 2
- We release Jan 31 1996 (three months later than option 1) with a much better solution both in quality and scope
than option 1. We can make waves with marketing vaporware for much of the time but we will still lose some
early adopters for WIN95. WP will be able to address the most significant advances made for Word 95 and
have significant advantages of their own to be considered a rev ahead of the competition. QP will be able to
severely blur any difference between the spreadsheet products and have some additional strengths to compete
head to head with 1-2-3 and Excel. PR will make similar advances and at least make all competitive reviews
take note. Groupwise will deliver many significant enhancements that will be a real differentiator and make our
network story solid. Perfect Office will win many of the head to head competitions but will be noticeably absent
from early reviews. Prediction of market share for Perfect Office by the end of 1996 is 25%.

Option 3
- We release WPWin in Sept 1995. WP competes favorably in the WIN95 standalone market. Perfect Office
will not release until April 31, 1996 (six months later than option 1) and it will not be as good as the option 2
product. WP, Shared Code and PR will have double the overhead and have difficulty accomplishing many of the
more meaningful changes needed to compete. QP and GroupWise will have better Best-of-Breed solutions than
even in option 2 but WP and PR will suffer along with our seamless strategy due to shared code overhead. QP
might pursue the option of shipping in the same time frame as Option 2. This will also be very difficult on
testing because of new combination testing and may result in some loss of product quality. Prediction of market
share for Perfect Office by the end of 1996 is 5% because we are so late and we have become a standalone
provider only

Recommendation:

Option 2 is the best option. This allows us to produce and sell the next great solution. To be competitive
long-term in this aggressive market we must make better solutions for our customers and to do this we need to
spend the requisite time developing them. Lotus and MS opted to create 32 bit solutions early this year at the
expense of having additional 16 bit releases. They are allocating significant development time between releases to
allow significant advances. To compete with these forces we must at least allocate similar time frames. We
have a great opportunity to leverage the most extensive research ever done in advance at this company, the
tapestry research. This research began over a year ago and has found many customer needs that we can satisfY
with Storm. These fIndings can give us a complete work solution that will give us a signifIcant competitive
advantage. If we do not utilize this research now then our competitors will have opportunities to discover these
same solutions. We can be competitive in the long-term and win market share with this option.

NOV·B01491220
CONFIDENTIAL

Case 2:04-cv-01045-JFM   Document 496-3   Filed 02/03/12   Page 46 of 97



5

APPENDIX A

Introduction
Storm is the code name for our Perfect Office release to follow the PO 3.0 product that is shipping Dec.

1994. This is a large and growing market and a pending release ofWIN95 are driving the need for this product.
Our goal for storm product development is to understand customers' needs and provide the best solutions for

those needs.

Background
We understand our customers because we have always made it our top priority. In the early years

WordPerfect listened to our customers by actually working with them. As we grew, we introduced the best
customer support in the industry. Not only has this helped us solve customers' problems in shipping products
but it also allows us to understand user needs and incorporate those in the next product release. With Perfect
Office 3.0 we added state-of-the-art usability studies to make our products easy to use and task oriented like
customers really work. With Storm we have taken the next step in understanding our customers through a
process called "Contextual Design" (CD). We have gone out and sat down to observe our customers at work in
their own businesses. We have taken extensive notes and observations to really understand users' intents.
Storm is the first release in a progression toward solving seamlessly and completely what our customers need.

Project Scope
4) The platform of the future for most of our customers is WIN95. Customers need solutions that take
advantage of this operating system and work seamlessly in this environment. The top priority for Storm is to
run seamlessly on this OS.
5) The most significant needs we have observed through CD is better tools for people working together.
All work we observed is collaborative and it is an area that has only been minimally addressed in current offerings
by integrating the software packages What people really need is to connect people to people NOT program to
program. Our next priority for Storm is to help people work together by providing a communications centric
work place This includes services such as a universal in/out box, an activity log, post-its for those frequent
interruptions, a shared address book (shared by the network, mail, word processing, spreadsheets etc.), and
document routing. The other aspect of helping people work together is to help the system administrators who
manage the network and communications. These services include an enhanced Install (Network ease of use,
centralized distribution, metering/licensing) and Remote management of a workstation setup.
6) The next user need is to streamline the current work process (make it seamless) to make users more
productive. This data gathered through CD and customer support has led to the following priorities: Reuse
existing objects, Scripting, Additional Vertical Solutions, More VI consistency to make it easier to learn and an
extensive help system (overhaul).
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Notes from Storm Coordination Meeting

February 2, 1995

Novell Confidential

Dates:
Next version ofWP to ship 9/15. This will include PerfectFit, Draw, Chart, Printing, QuickFinder, etc.

Next version of PO Standard to ship 11130. This will include WP, QP, PR, Envoy, and a license for
GroupWise client

Next version of GroupWise will ship a month or so later.

Dates "set" by Bob Frankenburg. Perception in channel is almost as important as what we have. Thus vital
to release WP ASAP so that we can that our flagship product is ready on WIN 95 platform.

As dates were discussed Steve Wietzel said "all I ask is that this year my developer's will get a two-week
vacation" Apparently vacations were canceled last year --lots ofjoking about accruing time and not getting
to use it

TimeLine:
Goal is to have every group using TimeLine to manage the project Within two weeks all of the
develoment group's TimeLine's will be on the network Marcus Lunt is training folks and making sure the
places information is stored on the database are set up and communicated. Decision made to put design
templates (and other templates) along with sample documents out on LIBWIN so that everyone always pulls
down the latest template. Contact Marcus Lunt for license information to TimeLine (or talk directly with
Linda Terrill), access to files, training, etc.

Code Names and Person(s) In Charge:

Bruce Brereton - Lead Developer
Storm - PO - Gary Gibb and Todd Titensor - Marketing
Thunder - WP - Steve Wietzel - Developer
- Quattro Pro - Murray Low

Lightning
- Presentations - Shawn Reid

Flash - Envoy - Dallas Powell
Wind - PerfectFit - Tom Creighton - Developer
Online Tools - Dennis Wilken
Typhoon? - GroupWise - Rich Hume
PO Select - Eric Meyers - Developer
1nterworks - Nolan Larsen, Jack Young, Randy Bliss - Developers
Network Suite - Larry Barker

If you would like to attend development coordination meetings send an e-mail to the person listed above. I
will continue to attend product marketing coordination meetings and distribute the notes.

February 3, 1995 Novell Education - Confidential Page 1
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Other Personnel Notes:

Documentation - Heather Nibley - Susan Zeller Project Manager - Linda Baker
Jack Young and Nolan Larsen are now the same - work closely together. Jack will remain our contact for
Useability Lab. Right now there isn't anyone running it -- no admin, etc. But if we want to use the facility
he is our point of contact.

Product Notes:

Number one priority for Storm is to be WIN 95 compatible.

Paradox is critical to future. (James, thanks for the questions)

Implementing a few of the findings and research from Rosseau and other similar teams. To meet aggressive
development schedule many of the Rosseau findings will be saved for next version.

InfoCentral will rev to v.I. 5 in April. A few interface issues change. The engine remains the same.

Exploring possibility of handling file and directory capabilities through Chicago folders.

Their best guess is that WIN 95 will slip and ship just in time for Comdex. Kind of hoping so since that will
give us a bit more time to "polish" product.

Quattro Pro folks still working on International versions ofQP 6.0. Expect to fInish that by end of March
and then will begin on next version ofQP.

PO Select will include Paradox, Appware (v 1.2 will release in Brainshare time frame - March - will still
work with current version of PO - v 2.0 will release this fall), Personal Netware.

Another category (not named yet) may include InfoCentral, InForms, PeachTree, TimeLine.

Are not sure yet whether QP and PR slide shows will change to be the same or whether they will remain as
they are. (James, they appreciated this question!)

To know the proper way to refer to each product (is it WPWin 6.1 or WordPerfect for Windows 6.10r ??)
contact Todd Titensor or Chris Grazioplene.

Catherine's Action Items:
Send notes to Chuck, Alan, James, Kristi, Quinn, Pauline, Bryce, Kristen
Kari contact Marcus Lunt
Contact Heather - find out when and how writers in Doc. Services are getting information..
Get access to WPC21. Read MRD. Find out what .WBS Project means.
Contact Byron Brown to see who is representing Novell Education in the Strategy Council meetings for ISO
9000.

February 3, 1995 Novell Education - Confidential Page 2
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From:
To:
Date:
Subject:

Bruce Brereton
BU-Staff, BU-Mgrs
3/1/95 5: 59am
*** Product Dates ***

** Confidential **

In an effort to make sure we are all in-sync with our product dates, I'm sending
this message out to our group leaders. Please forward this with your teams.
As you know, our current "plan of record" is that we would ship our Win95 products
as follows:

- WP: September 15th
- Storm: November 30th (the Suite and the standalone products)

After further discussion and an analysis of several options, we feel it will be
much better to have WP (which then implies PerfectFit, WPDraw, and many other
components) on the same schedule as Storm. Also, the QP team have examined their
product deliver timeframe and feel December 30th is a more realistic date.
THEREFORE, after reviewing this with Mark, Glen and others, we have moved the
Storm RTM date back by one month (to December 30th) and have put WP on the same
time-line as storm.

Some Additional Comments:
1. We still have several assignments that are not yet covered (we are short by
about 10 people). So we are looking at doing some relocations of our staff (a
few assignments will be temporary and some will be permanent). I'll be working
with the various development directors to come up with the best proposals and
we'll be surveying our teams to see if there is any interest in the specific open
posi tions. Also, we are committed to help out the QP team in any way we can (most
likely PerfectFit and Win95 kinds of things). So please be aware that some of
you will be asked to travel to Scotts Valley for short trips and may work on QP
for some amount of time while here in Orem (FWIW, their location is beautiful) .

2. lrJe will be moving forward on an new release of the 16-bi t PerfectOffice product
(to be called 3.1). The intent of this release is to provide better Win95 support
and to include a few enhancements. Eric Meyers will be coordinating this proj ect
and we do not expect this to be a major development effort. Also, we feel there
should be no documentation changes (unless we choose to include a small flyer
of the product differences). This release is targeted for July 15th.

3. We feel it is essential that we "sync" up many of our products to the July
and December dates. This would include: all the products that ship with the Suite,
the WP/SGML edition, and the other Windows versions of Envoy. WPDOS, WPMac,
Select, and the Internet Professional edition, can be on a different schedule,
however we realize the above date changes may effect these other products.

4. We are still very committed to delivering concurrent international releases
of our products (including double-byte releases). Steve Tippetts' teams are
spearheading this and I'd like each of you to continue to work diligently on this
goal.

5. Given some of the recent changes with the ComponentWare group and now these
additional staffing changes (mentioned in #1), we will be looking at some slight
office moves. We are hoping to keep these to a minimum and we will probably not

NOV·B13528783
CONFIDENTIAL

Case 2:04-cv-01045-JFM   Document 496-3   Filed 02/03/12   Page 96 of 97



have this finalized until mid-March.

6. Even though the dates have moved back (and for some teams it is significant),
THIS DOES NOT MEAN WE WANT NEW FUNCTIONALITY. You should stay with the basic
features you were planning on for Storm. We want this additional time to be used
to insure better integration of the QP product, allow us to componentize more
of our PerfectFit code, and (MOST IMPORTANTLY) insure we deliver a BUG-FREE and
SPEEDY product. I know coding to make speed improvements can effect the software
just as much as adding new functionality, so there will need to be a balance in
what we do. Given these changes the Storm code complete date will be in about
August. Let's take from right NOW until then to do our very best at following
the Product Life Cycle and planning out our products in advance (having marketing,
customer support, testing, documentation, and our development teams working
together). If we do this, then from September to December we are just "fine tuning"
the product. My hope is still that we can all have a nice summer vacation. Maybe
the testing teams go in July (after the interim ships) or August, and the developers
go in August (or maybe earlier, since I'm assuming many will be code complete
with their individual pieces sooner than August), etc. I know things will probably
change a lot between now and then, but work with your team leader on this item.

thanks, Bruce

*** Please remember this is confidential information ***

cc: MCalkins, GlenM, Dave, Stewart, Toddtr, Scooter, D...
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